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PROCEEDI NGS

JUDGE CLARK: Good norning. By nmy watch it is
10:00 aam So let's go on the record now. Today's date
is January 29, 2019, and it is 10:00 aam W're in Room
310 of the Governor Ofice Building. The Conm ssion set
aside this tinme for a rule comment hearing in the file
captioned as In The Matter O Proposed Revisions To
| mprove The Commission's Rules, File No. AX-2018-0395.
And that involves rescissions, anmendnents and a proposed
rule involving 4 CSR 240's Chapter 2, 3, 10, and 13,
specifically rescissions of 3.015, 3.020, 3.025, 3.180,
3.250, anendnents of 2.010, 2.070, 2.120, 3.010, 3.030,
10. 020, 10.040, 13.010, 13.015, 13.020, 13.025, 13.030,
13. 050, 13.055, 13.070, and a proposed Rule 4 CSR
240- 2. 205.

l"mgoing to rem nd the parties when they're
speaki ng today to use the mcrophone. M nanme is John
Clark. 1'mthe Regulatory Law Judge assigned to this
matter. To ny right is Conm ssioner Hall on behal f of
t he Conm ssi on.

|"'mgoing to begin by asking the attorneys to
enter their appearance for the record starting with
Conmi ssion Staff?

MR. PRINGE  Good norning, Judge. Good

nor ni ng, Conmi ssioner Hall. M nane is Travis Pringle.

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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| am Legal Counsel for the Staff of the M ssouri Public
Service Comm ssion. Staff filed our comments to this
case on January 18, and | have with ne Jam e Myers for
any questions about those coments.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Fromthe O fice of
t he Public Counsel ?

MR. HALL: Good norning. Caleb Hall appearing
on behalf of the O fice of Public Counsel.

JUDGE CLARK: Aneren M ssouri?

M5. JOHNSON: Paul a Johnson appearing on
behal f of Union Electric Conpany d/b/a Areren M ssouri .

JUDGE CLARK: And Kansas City Power & Light
and GVO?

MR. FI SCHER On behal f of those conpanies,
Janmes M Fischer, and |I've given ny contact information
to the reporter.

JUDGE CLARK: Gkay. Thank you all. 1'm going
to remnd you that this is not a contested case. It's a
rule comment hearing. So there's no cross-exam nation
fromthe parties. The Conm ssion, however, may question
W tnesses. |If you testify, before you start testifying
pl ease be sure to state your nane and your position, and
nobody has really deened an order for coments. | I|iked
the order on yesterday's hearing that | sat in on. So

why don't we start with the Conm ssion Staff.

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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M5. MYERS:. Thank you, Judge. M nane is
Jame Myers. |'mthe Comm ssion Staff Deputy Director.
| appreciate those who have filed coments and those who
have attended today. This rulenmaking is part of the
| arger rule review process that was under Executive
Order 17-03. The intent of these rul enaki ngs was to
i nprove the Comm ssion's rules, to streanine, to
sinplify, also to nmake any noted updates that we found
as going through that rule review process. That's what
we're here for today.

| appreciate the comments that have been
filed, because | think there's sone additional things we
can do and corrections we can make. Wth that, what |
would do is start with the Ofice of the Public
Counsel's filed comments.

OPC filed coments noting two specific things.
It's in paragraph 2 and 3 of their filed coments.
Par agraph 2, OPC recommends that the reference that
Staff is recommending to update in Chapter 3, it's
3.010, it was an incorrect reference. Instead of trying
to nail down the statutory definition to the specific
cite to just say as defined in Section 386.020, Staff
woul d be fine with that. | think that's in line with as
we start, you know, noving things out of Chapter 3 and

putting themin their specific utility chapters that

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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makes sense to just do 386.020. So Staff is fine with
t hat recommendation. As well as OPC nade a suggestion
i n paragraph 3 noting what was a spelling typo error.
So instead of "serves known to the utilities" it should
be "services known to the utilities.” OPC was correct
in noting that typo.

And then Anmeren M ssouri filed comments, as
well as Spire Mssouri filed comrents |ast night. Spire
M ssouri's coments just said that they supported Aneren
M ssouri's comments. So as | wal k through Aneren
M ssouri's coments, |'ll also be responding to Spire
M ssouri as well.

And so Anmeren Mssouri's filed comments
provi ded thoughts on several rules, and I will start on
page 2 of Anmeren Mssouri's filed comments. |[It's
paragraph 6 where they start noting specific
recommendations. So in terns of 2.010, Staff had
recommended updating the definition of Staff Counsel.
Amreren M ssouri had sonme additional |anguage thoughts on
t hat .

Staff suggests that we go with Staff's
original proposal on that. It nerely defines Staff
Counsel as any attorney enployed to represent the
comm ssion staff in proceedi ngs before the comm ssion.

Anmeren was suggesting holding on to sone of the original

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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| anguage in that definition, as well as expoundi ng on
that. | don't think that's necessary. The original

| anguage was trying to differentiate Staff Counsel when
Staff Counsel was part of General Counsel's Ofice.
Because Staff Counsel is a separate entity now, that
original |anguage isn't needed. So | don't think

hol ding on to sone of that original |anguage and
expounding on it is necessary.

And then noving on to paragraph 7 of Aneren's
coments. I n paragraph 7, Ameren offers two comments on
the sane rule. It's 2.070. It's the conplaints rule.
For (8), Ameren suggests nodifying the | anguage. Staff
had attenpted to sinplify the service | anguage tying
service to the Suprene Court Rule 54. What Aneren is
suggesting here is that utilities can receive emi
notification and therefore it's not necessary to do this
certified mail Suprenme Court Rule 54. Wiile |
understand that and | acknowl edge that's true for many
utilities, | don't think that's true for all utilities.

| think we have to have this rule that would
apply to all the utilities we regulate. And so sinply
having these two different standards where a utility is
served via email or EFIS by the counsel of record of the
conplaint, |I think that opens up the door to counsel on

what record, record in what case. Not every single one

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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of our utilities is a large corporation that has in
house counsel on record, that sort of thing. So | think
goi ng back to Staff's original proposed | anguage tying
service to service under Suprene Court Rule 54 is
Staff's recommendati on.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Refresh ny recollection
what is Suprene Court Rule 54 | anguage?

M5. MYERS:. There's a |l ot of |anguage in
Suprenme Court Rule 54. | think there's 14 subparts.
Yeah, there's 14 subparts to it.

COWMM SSI ONER HALL: Related to service?

M5. MYERS: Correct.

COWM SSI ONER HALL: Okay. Al right. Keep
going. I'msorry.

M5. MYERS: That's okay. And then Aneren's
conmments on 2.070 (15) (D) was the comrent on Staff's
suggesti on about renoving the | anguage that has in sone
I nstances been interpreted as not allowng Staff to take
a positionin a smll formal conplaint. Again, it
wasn't interpreted that way in every case, but in sone
it has. Staff suggested renoving that |anguage to
allowing Staff when it does an investigation to
ultimately nmake a recomrendati on to the Conm ssion.

| think Areren's comment here it says that

| anguage shoul d remain because it believes the default

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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Staff position as a neutral party in these sort of
proceedings is inportant. | would counter that with
saying renoving this | anguage does not change Staff's
position as the neutral party. Staff is always the
neutral party in these proceedings, but it would all ow
Staff to ultimtely say these are the facts, this is the
conclusion, and this ultimately we think is a
recomrendation. W're still the neutral party not
representing any particular interests in the case, but
it would allow -- again, it would give the Comm ssion an
addi ti onal recomrendation in the case which | see
val ui ng.

COWMM SSI ONER HALL: You note that there's been
i nconsistent interpretation of that provision and |
think that is true. At times Staff has cone very cl ose
if not actually nade recommendations in sone of those
cases; is that true?

M5. MYERS: | would agree with that, yes.

COW SSI ONER HALL: And so under this | anguage
it would be Staff's viewthat it would be appropriate
for Staff to make recommendations in all of these small
conpl ai nt cases?

M5. MYERS: Yeah, that's the intent with this
recomended change.

COWMM SSI ONER HALL: Okay. And | woul d agree

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC 10
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662



© 00 N oo o0 A~ W DN PP

N NN N NN P B P P P P PP P
o M W N P O © 00 N O O » W N P O

AX-2018-0395 Vol . |

with that conpletely. Thank you

JUDCE CLARK: Wth a lot of these |'ve seen
where |'ve asked for briefs Staff has asked to be
excused frombriefing for precisely the reason that they
tell me their brief isn't going to be nore than their
filed report.

M5. MYERS: Correct.

COW SSI ONER HALL: 1'll note there's been a
nunber of times when |'ve been frustrated why isn't
Staff giving us a recommendation, and then | cone to the
realization oh, well, they don't think they can.

M5. MYERS: Right. W wouldn't have that
excuse any nore.

JUDGE CLARK: (Go on.

M5. MYERS: Moving on to paragraph 8. This
i nvol ves Chapter 3. Actually it's noving on to
paragraph 9. Paragraph 8 is just a general headi ng.

Paragraph 9 is a comment on 3.030. Staff had
made sone recomrendati ons on the M nimum Filing
Requirenments for Uility General Rate Increases.

t hi nk Ameren M ssouri and Spire M ssouri had sone good

t houghts on here in ways the | anguage could be nodifi ed.
However, | woul d suggest nodifying it in a slightly
different way. So what Staff had recomrended in section

(3) here was to renove the requirenents, and | think

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC 11
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it's arequirenent that is an outdated thing where 14
copies would be filed with the Comm ssion which isn't
necessary. However, noted not everyone files hard
copies with the Comm ssion. Electronic filing is a
thing. So | think the rule could be general enough that
it would contenplate either filing of hard copies or
el ectronically.

So Staff would suggest that the | anguage read
on section (3): That at the tine a tariff is filed by a
conpany or utility subject to this rule which contains a
general rate increase, one copy of the follow ng
information shall be filed with the Secretary of the
Commi ssion and one copy shall be provided to the Ofice
of the Public Counsel. And note |I'm al so changi ng that
to one copy for the Ofice of the Public Counsel. 1've
previously discussed this with Caleb Hall of the Ofice
of the Public Counsel. He didn't see any concern with
OPC receiving one copy. And again, | think this
| anguage here contenpl ates either an electronic filing
or a hard paper filing, as well as whether OPC woul d
receive a hard copy or an electronic copy. | think it's
general enough that either could happen.

JUDGE CLARK: Way are you wanting to renove
the word request fromthere?

MS. MYERS: | did not nean to. And so if |

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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am that was a m sstatenent on ny part.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay.

M5. MYERS:. Ckay.

COW SSI ONER HALL: What is wong with the
| anguage proposed by Ameren?

M5. MYERS. The way | read Aneren's | anguage
is it only contenplates EFIS filing.

COWM SSI ONER HALL: Ckay.

M5. MYERS: So that's why | was thinking --
and | think EFISis traditionally how things are filed,
though | do think at tinmes hard copies are filed. So
witing the rule general enough to contenpl ate both was
nmy thought there.

COW SSI ONER HALL: So would it be clearer if
it expressly said you could do both?

M5. MYERS: That would work as well.

COW SSI ONER HALL: So you could take Aneren's
| anguage and say or one copy to Staff and one copy, one
hard copy to OPC?

M5. MYERS: Uh-huh, and | think it would be
one copy to the Secretary of the Conmm ssion and one hard
copy to OPC

Staff's next comment is paragraph 12 of Ameren
M ssouri's filed comrents, page 6. Here Ameren M ssour

is commenting on Chapter 13. It's 015 Definitions.

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC 13
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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This first comment is in regards to (1)(A). Aneren

M ssouri suggests in their coments that they don't
object to Staff's proposed changes, but they note that
maybe clarifications are needed. Staff would counter
that those clarifications aren't necessarily needed. So
t he | anguage Aneren is proposing to add here in (1) (A,

| think that |anguage is already covered if you | ook at
13. 010, specifically Section (4) | think already
enconpasses what Ameren M ssouri is suggesting in this
additional clarification.

COW SSI ONER HALL: I'msorry. \Were is that
| anguage?

M5. MYERS: Chapter 13.010 Section (4).

JUDGE CLARK: Go ahead.

M5. MYERS: Aneren noted in (1)(G of that
sanme Rule 13.015 that Staff's proposed | anguage, there
was an apparent conflict. Staff would agree with that.
So what Staff would suggest would either don't change
t he | anguage or should the | anguage need a
clarification, we can offer additional proposed
| anguage.

COWM SSI ONER HALL: So Ameren's proposal that
the existing rule be retained with no revision Staff is
confortable w th?

M5. MYERS: W are.

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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JUDGE CLARK: You may conti nue.

M5. MYERS: Ckay. The next response woul d be
to paragraph 13. This is on Rule 13.030. Aneren nade
sone comments here on nodifications to the proposed
| anguage. Staff agrees with sone of those nodifications
but woul d suggest additional nodifications to Aneren's
| anguage. So on page 8 Anmeren provides this |anguage.

Staff woul d suggest that instead of citing to
the specific rule it should read unl ess prohibited by
this chapter, a custonmer who is unable to pay for the
entire deposit for gas or electric service. Staff is
al so okay with the additional stricken |anguage that
Aneren has provi ded there.

Lastly woul d be to paragraph 14. Anmeren noted
that instead of sinply referencing a rule over and over
it could be sinplified to stating this regulation
t hroughout the rule. Staff is fine with that.

JUDGE CLARK: That's sonmewhat consistent with
what you just suggested previously?

M5. MYERS: Correct.

JUDGE CLARK: Are those all of Staff's
responses to filed coments?

M5. MYERS:. They are.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Fromthe Ofice of

t he Public Counsel? Hold on just a second. Are there

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC 15
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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any ot her questions fromthe Comm ssion? The Ofice of
t he Public Counsel ?

MR, HALL: Good norning. Thank you for
providing the O fice of the Public Counsel this avenue
to provide comments on the Conm ssion's rul e revisions.
The comments that we filed on the 18th of January only
addressed two mnor points within Staff's revisions wth
t he understandi ng that the Conm ssion drafted rul es
largely in response to the former Governor's Executive
Order to stream ine and consol i date existing rules.

W only noted that one citation to an existing
statute could be inproved such that if future revisions
of that statute occurred down the street at the Genera
Assenbly we need not anend our rules everytine. And we
noti ced what we thought to be a typo.

Beyond those two comments, we would like to
take the time to respond to Anreren's filed conments and
Spire's concurrence in support of Anmeren's conments.

JUDGE CLARK: Pl ease go ahead.

MR, HALL: As to Aneren's suggested change to
Staff's proposed revision to the Chapter 2 Section 10
Definitions section, we believe that Staff's proposed
| anguage of the definition of Staff Counsel maintains
t heir independence. However, if Ameren's concerns are

to be better addressed, we woul d suggest that the

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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| anguage that Staff Counsel operates independent is
taken out of the definition and put into a separate
subsection and that's just nerely in the nature of from
a drafting standpoint we believe that operative | anguage
shoul d not be couched inside a definition section. As
to -- pardon ne.

COWMM SSI ONER HALL: So I'm not sure | track
that. Are you confortable with Staff's -- with the
ori gi nal | anguage?

MR HALL: Yes.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Ckay. Thank you.

JUDCE CLARK: Staff had indicated that nuch of
t he proposed changes nmade by Aneren M ssouri related to
back when Staff Counsel's Ofice was part of the General
Counsel's Ofice. So is the secondary functions
i ndependently, is that even necessary?

MR, HALL: Based on Staff's comments, | don't
believe so. But if the Conmssion did wsh to assuage
Ameren M ssouri's concerns, we just offer in the
alternative that that be renoved fromthe definitions
section and then be prom nently displayed in sone
subsection. That's nmerely just a stylistic point.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

MR, HALL: Moving on to Anreren M ssouri's

suggestions for changes to Section 70 of Chapter 2 on

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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the conplaints regulation. Ameren Mssouri seens to be
concerned that Staff would be losing its status as
neutral party if it was sonehow getting an indication of
how a conpl ai nt woul d proceed. OPC notes the

par adoxi cal nature of if Comm ssion Staff does take a
position as to whether a conplaint should proceed or
not. That nature in and of itself is taking a position
of at least some kind. So we think Staff's revisions
are fair and under st andabl e.

OPC woul d note that just because a party
starts out as a neutral arbitrator in a dispute does not
mean that they don't ultimately nmake a decision. So we
think the Staff's revisions are rather not necessary --
are -- pardon me. |I'mlosing nmy verbiage today. |'m
l osing ny --

JUDGE CLARK: It sounds |ike you' re saying
that it helps clarify a wider position for them

MR. HALL: Yes, thank you, Your Honor.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Are you referring to
(15)(D) or (8)?

MR. HALL: Pardon ne. (15)(D), yes.

COWM SSI ONER HALL: I'mw th you then.

MR, HALL: Mbving on to subparagraph 9 of
Amreren's filed comments addressing the Section 30

Chapter 3 MninumFiling Requirenents for Uility

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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Conpany General Rate |Increase Requests. OPC believes
that Staff's proposed revisions enable electronic filing
contrary to Aneren M ssouri's concerns that the revised
rule doesn't enable Areren M ssouri to provide

el ectronic filing as well. So we think that Staff's
revisions are fine on that regard.

As to Aneren's suggestion that only one copy
be sent to Public Counsel, we think that is a fair and
reasonabl e change.

JUDGE CLARK: You're tal king about the
| anguage as filed or are you tal king about the new
| anguage offered today?

MR. HALL: As to the -- sorry. Pardon ne.

JUDGE CLARK: | think if | remenber right,
Staff proposed an alternative readi ng today and
Comm ssi oner Hall al so proposed, you know, why not say
this or that.

MR, HALL: Sure. Let ne respond to each in
kind. From Staff's original filing, we saw that as
breaki ng down two parts. One was changes to how you
file with the Conmm ssion. The second one was a
requi rement of sending two copies to Public Counsel. As
to the first part, filing with the Comm ssion, we
believe that Staff's revised rules would enable

el ectronic filing which we understand that to be Ameren

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662
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M ssouri's desire. As to Public Counsel's -- as to the
change to the provision relating to Public Counsel, we
agree with that and think it's reasonable. As to the

| anguage now offered by Staff in the alternative, we
think that is also reasonable. As to the |anguage

of fered by the Comm ssioner, we think that also
addresses the concerns.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

MR, HALL: Moving on to Anreren M ssouri's
suggestions to changes to Section 15 of Chapter 13 in
the Definitions section. Aneren Mssouri has suggested
that the definition of applicant be further refined to
require that they provide certain information as is
required within the utility's tariffs. W echo Staff's
response that that requirenent is already satisfied
within the newy nunbered subsection (3) of Section 10
of Chapter 13 within Staff's proposed rules. And
furthernore we woul d not recommend the change as offered
by Aneren M ssouri sinply for the reason that not al
utilities require certain information at the initiation
of utility service.

As for within this sane rule, Aneren M ssouri

has suggested that the word "and" be changed to "or" so
that a custoner woul d be defined as a person or |egal

entity who is presently or who has received service from

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
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the utility or accepted responsibility for paynent of
t hat service.

| don't think this was Areren M ssouri's
intent. But when | read that literally, it neans that
if you enjoy utility service you are seen as a custoner
for purposes of that rule. W are all enjoying Areren
M ssouri's utility service in this roomright now I|f
the state were to nix on its bill and not pay for the
bill to this building, it seens we would all be defined
as custonmers and even yourself, Your Honor, could be
seen as soneone who has to pay up the front for that
bill. W don't think that was Anmeren M ssouri's intent,
but literally it seens |ike that's the absurd result.
So instead we recommend that you keep the changes as
offered by Staff.

| should have nentioned that. As |'m going
t hrough Aneren M ssouri's comrents, if | fail to respond
to any of the recommendations, it's nerely because
Publ i ¢ Counsel concurs or agrees with their position.

JUDGE CLARK: | can see how you're reading the
first section that way. Wen it says previously
recei ved service fromthe utility, is that what you're
referring to?

MR, HALL: No. What | nean is if you change

the -- if you change the and to or within sub --
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JUDGE CLARK: Substantial benefit? Point ne
to exactly what you're looking at. That's what | want
to know.

MR, HALL: Ckay. Section 15, Chapter 13
Definitions you go to, | believe these are called
par agraphs, paragraph (G . You have a definition of
custonmer. Sonmeone who is presently or has previously
recei ved service fromthe utility and accepted
responsibility. The and is what was offered by Staff.
Ameren M ssouri has offered in the alternative that that
and be changed into an or in order to provide clarity to
the rule.

Public Counsel offers that read literally then
a custoner is someone who accepted responsibility or
soneone who ever presently or in the past received
service, and custonmers wthin this chapter would then be
subject to bill collection nethods by the utility.

Public Counsel offers that to better address
Ameren M ssouri's concerns the definition of custoner
coul d be changed to sonething of the nature of soneone
who is responsi ble for paying those bills. That would
t ake care of people who have explicitly accepted
responsi bility such as those custoners who call the
utility and put their nane on those accounts. That

woul d al so address the conmmon | aw responsibilities of a
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joint tenant or a roommate who enjoys that service and
has a nmuch nore substantial connection to the utility
and responsibility of paynment rather than just any
passer by who happens to enter a building and by the
nature of being in the building literally enjoys that
utility service.

JUDGE CLARK: You're taking mainly received is
the word that's really causing a problemthere for you?

MR HALL: Yes.

COW SSI ONER HALL: COkay. So what is OPC s
position on the original |anguage, the existing
| anguage?

MR, HALL: Public Counsel does not see any
need to change the | anguage. W believe that Staff's
revisions are a fair and reasonable change to them

COW SSI ONER HALL: So it woul d appear that
Areren, Staff and OPC are all fine with [eaving the
exi sting | anguage?

MR HALL: Yes.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Ckay. Thank you.

MR, HALL: O rather do not let ne speak for
other parties. |If they disagree, they should voice
t hat .

Moving on to Ameren M ssouri's suggested

changes to Section 30 of Chapter 13 Deposits and
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Guar antees of Paynent. Anmeren M ssouri is concerned
about the inplication that the custoners who have been
assessed a deposit at anytine could pay in installnents
even if they were not able to pay the deposit in full
duri ng Novenber, Decenber, and January. Honestly, |
guess we're okay with that inplication in terns of
consuner benefits. W don't actually see Aneren's
proposed revi sions as addressing that vagueness on the
part of the conpany.

However, we do agree that citing to the Cold
Weat her rule to avoid any conflict between the Cold
Weat her rul e and the guaranteed paynents is a fair and
reasonabl e change. So we approve of Ameren M ssouri's
suggestion that the phrase unless prohibited by 4 CSR
240-13.055(8) is a fair change.

At the sane tine, | also believe that Staff
Counsel's witness's suggestion that this be changed to
just reference to Chapter 13 would al so be good.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

MR, HALL: Finally, as to any other changes
that | did not address in Areren Mssouri's filing, we
ei ther concur with them or agree and think that they are
reasonabl e changes that shoul d be approved.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Aneren M ssouri?

M5. JOHNSON: Thank you. Paul a Johnson for
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Amreren Mssouri. |'"mjust going to kind of go through
and support our comments and respond to sone of the

t hi ngs that have been said. Before | do, though, | do
want to thank Staff for all the hard work they have gone
t hrough to work on pulling these rules together and
consolidating them | appreciate what an effort that is
and | just want to |let you know that we do appreciate
everything you' ve done and we hope that our additional
comrents just provide further benefit.

Going to the definition in ny paragraph 6, |
think we were just going for a little bit of
transparency. W don't really have a concern about the
i ndependence. W just think transparency in governnent
is always a good thing. |In our eyes, that nade that
clear. | don't think we would contest anything. W
know that Staff has been wonderful to work with. Having
that standard in place doesn't necessarily hurt anything
either and just kind of reinforces, reinforces the
operations and transparency to the public.

Par agraph 7 when we're getting into the
conplaints, | think one of the reasons we suggested the
emai | service, we do have a general service email where

we can receive sone of these so we know it wll always

get to our in house counsel. | realize that not every
utility has that opportunity. | think maybe an
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either/or service mght be hel pful partially because the
sooner we can get service of a conplaint the sooner we
can begin working to try to address it and see if we can
resolve it before it ever gets into another proceeding.
Going through the mail system sonetines it can add an
extra five days or so to that process just for us being
abl e to address the custoner's concern that nuch nore
quickly. So if there's a way that we could construct

| anguage that m ght do an either/or for conpanies |ike
ours that does have a general service enmail that goes
directly to our attorneys, that would be very hel pful.

JUDGE CLARK: Just a quick question. So what
you're saying right nowis right now you don't receive
an EFI'S notification or an email? For a conplaint for
Areren to have notice of it at this tine it's entirely
via email -- or entirely via the postal service?

M5. JOHNSON: We don't always receive an EFI S
notification. Usually we don't get the full content of
anything until we get the mailed service. So | can
doubl e check with our paralegals to make sure |I'm
reflecting that correctly. | do know that even when we
do Ii ke spot sone of these we still have to file an
entry of appearance so that we can get the ful
i nformati on and that would just speed up that process

for us al so.
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JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

COWMM SSI ONER HALL: 1'd be interested if Staff
or OPC could respond to that argunent if they have any
addi ti onal analysis that woul d be val uabl e.

M5. MYERS. | can speak from Staff's
perspective. So what we were going for here was just a
clarification of what constitutes service here. And so
tying it to the Suprenme Court Rule 54 we thought was
sonet hing that woul d provi de consi stency.

To Ms. Johnson's point, and as | kind of
briefly noted earlier, we understand that there are
utilities who may have in house counsel or a general
service list. | think if we could craft this |anguage
in away that would allow for those utilities to be
served that way with the default is through the Suprene
Court Rule 54 so that we are getting proper service on
these other utilities. | think ny initial concern on
readi ng Ameren M ssouri's proposed | anguage is that
public utilities, any service email on record and
whet her that's on record in any particular case it's not
listed here, you know. It could have been an attorney
t hat represented soneone in several cases prior is no
| onger representing them Those ki nds of things were
concerns when thinking about all utilities.

JUDGE CLARK: That's exactly what |' mthinking
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about when -- thinking about the fact that nost of the
conpl ai nts have confidential information.

M5. MYERS:. Right.

JUDGE CLARK: And so when those go out
certified mail, and they're theoretically getting to who
they should get to, theoretically they shouldn't be
goi ng to anybody el se before an entry of appearance is
made.

M5. MYERS:. Exactly.

MR, HALL: Your Honor, if | may add. Perhaps
this would be a belt on top of suspenders, but naybe
both parties' concerns could be addressed by requiring
the mail ed service in conpliance with Suprenme Court Rule
54 with the additional option that if a general service
emai| address is provided by a larger utility that the
Comm ssion can forward that conplaint innmediately --

t hereupon to that enmmil in addition to mail service.

M5. JOHNSON: We woul d be very appreciative of
that as a process.

JUDCE CLARK: How does that alleviate the down
side of it possibly not ending up wwth litigation,
endi ng up sonmewhere it shouldn't be?

M5. MYERS: To your point, Judge, |'mnot sure
that it does before that entry of appearance.

M5. JOHNSON: | do realize that not every
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utility is set up this way, but our general service
email only goes -- the only people who have access to
that are the Mssouri regulatory attorneys and our
paral egals. There aren't any other parties who can
actually access that inbox, but we do check that inbox
regul arly throughout the day. So if there was sone
construct where we could receive service that way, that
woul d allow us to nore quickly get an entry of

appear ance, get the additional information and begin
working all that nore quickly on trying to get the issue
resol ved.

M5. MYERS: One thought | had on Ms. Johnson's
poi nt of just getting notice as soon as possible that
sonet hi ng has been filed, | believe there are ways to
set up EFIS notifications so that if anything is filed
with Union Electric Conpany d/b/a Aneren M ssouri a
notification is sent out. So |I think, M. Johnson, when
you check wth your paral egals, that m ght be sonething
to check with too to nmake sure you guys are getting that
notice right away. Again, it mght not be the
confidential information, but they'll be on note that
sonet hi ng has been fil ed.

JUDGE CLARK: | think that woul d address at
| east sone of what |'minmrediately concerned with

because, like | said, | understand that that's how
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Ameren is set up but I have no way of know ng that
that's how other utilities are set up.

M5. MYERS: Right. And again, that wouldn't
be anything that would need to be done through a rule
change. That's just an option for EFIS notifications.

M5. JOHNSON: Thank you. | wll check into
those EFI S settings since | wasn't aware that mght be a
possi bility and that would hel p us trenmendously. So
t hank you for that.

Let's see. As far as the other portion
(15) (D), | think I may not have made our position
entirely clear. W absolutely do prefer to be able to
get Staff recommendations. Maybe there's another way to
clarify the | anguage. Qur issue would only cone into
play if for sone reason Staff went, and this is not
sonething |'ve seen happen often, but if Staff for sone
reason decided to | ead the charge on behalf of the
custoner and began taking an advocacy position that just
went a little too far into that real mand kind of |ost
t he senbl ance of neutrality in their position. Again,
this is not sonething that has happened very often, and
we have had very good working relationships with Staff
in getting this resolved. But while -- but it sounds
i ke there's anot her | anguage, naybe sone ot her | anguage

we could find where we could neet in the m ddl e, because
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we don't want Staff to also feel that they can't make a
recomendati on, because obviously that provides value to
everyone.

We also don't want Staff to feel that they
have to get into the advocacy position because that's
for the custonmer and possibly the Ofice of the Public
Counsel to do. So | guess that was our main concern.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Does this concern go
beyond situations where there are small conpl ai nt cases,
because that's all we're dealing with here. And so ny
understanding of this provision is to give Staff the
sane authority and responsibility it has in all cases.

M5. JOHANSON: | think that this would be
limted to the small rate cases because we understand --
or small conpl aint cases, because we understand |like in
a rate case they have a position that they have to
advocate on but they are by nature | ooking at an
expansi ve position that covers everything fromhere to
here. So we don't see that as an issue in the other
cases. Their position is kind of that inherent
neutrality because they're charged wth bal anci ng al
the interests at once.

| think there could be a tenptation in the
smal | conpl aint case when there's one custoner who has a

certain issue that Staff feels strongly about. There
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m ght be a tenptation to go a little further than just
this is our recommendati on and how that coul d be seen,
and | don't want themto feel they have an obligation to
be that custoner's attorney because that's not their
responsibility. So | think the concern is far nore with
the small conplaint cases than it is wth the broader
cases just because the broader cases al so have a w der
variety of intervenors who are comng into the process,
which | think also kind of addresses the broader
standi ng and the broader spectrum of positions.

We don't have that necessarily in the small
conpl ai nt cases. W don't want Staff to feel |ike they
have to get involved to a | arger extent beyond just the
i nvestigation and the reconmendati on.

COW SSI ONER HALL: So you woul d take issue
also with the newrule regarding Staff assisted rate
cases?

M5. JOHANSON: | have not | ooked at that in
detail. |[|'ve just looked at it fromthis perspective.
So | can't speak to that particul ar proposed rule.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Ckay.

JUDGE CLARK: M understanding of Staff's
position right nowis they' re al nost not understanding
why they're in these conplaints if their sole purpose is

to provide a report that's sort of a broad recitation of

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662

32



© 00 N oo o0 A~ W DN PP

N NN N NN P B P P P P PP P
o M W N P O © 00 N O O » W N P O

AX-2018-0395 Vol . |

just nerely the facts, whereas in nost cases they
provi de a reconmendati on based on what they believe
shoul d happen according to the rules, the | aw and the
tariffs. | think given the nature of what a conpl aint
case is, which is let's take the small, for exanple,

I ndi vi dual custoner conplaint, at the end of the day |
mean, are you really advocating a position if what -- if
what the custoner has to show is that a Conmm ssion rule,
order, tariff or law that would be under the authority
of the Conmm ssion was viol ated, how does that put Staff
in a position where they' re advocating if those are the
outside limts of their authority?

M5. JOHNSON: | think, and it's fairly
subjective which is why this is a hard one to discuss,
mean, | think it's absolutely appropriate for Staff to
i nvestigate, report on the facts that they believe are
appropriate and to nake a recomrendati on regardi ng

whet her or not they feel a rule or a tariff has been

violated. | think that is entirely appropri ate.
Qur issue conmes in when it goes beyond -- when
al nost |i ke when there's nore -- there feels like nore

of an enotional tie in what they're doing as if they are
now personally invested in the outcone on behalf of this
customer. Again, this is sonmething |I've very rarely

seen. | can't even cite to the exanple |I'mthinking of
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off the top of ny head. | can't renenber what exact
conpl aint case it was, but we have seen where |like the

| anguage in what was filed before the Conm ssion was
very -- there was no neutrality to it. There was very
little neutrality toit. There was very little of these
were the facts, this is what happened, this is our
recommendation. It was nore along the lines of the
conpany did this and it was reprehensi ble and how coul d
they, and that's what we're trying to avoid.

And that was hyperbole admttedly, but that's
the point we're trying to avoid, because | nean, Staff
in small conplaint cases in particular, | nean, they
have the ability to go back and go through a | ot of the
technical details and everything that are involved in
this. They absolutely have a very good standing to kind
of set a level set this is what we believe has happened
in this conplaint and this is what we recomrend you
should do. Again, we have no issue with that. It's
when -- and again, this is extrenely rare, but it's when
it's gone beyond that into nore of an enotional stance
alnmost. | can't think off the top of ny head of a
better way to describe it, that kind of issue.

JUDGE CLARK: Let ne ask you this. \What
you're taking issue is the renoval of the | anguage Staff

shall not advocate a position beyond reporting the
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results of its investigation. |t sounds |ike what
you're saying is you do not believe that that |anguage
prohibits Staff from nmaki ng a reconmendati on?

M5. JOHNSON: Right. And perhaps a good way
to do it is even, you know, it does not prohibit beyond
reporting the results of the investigation in making a
recomendati on regardi ng those results to the
Commi ssion. | nean, nmaybe adding that |anguage in would
be hel pful also. That would not create an issue and |
t hi nk woul d draw very appropriate |ines.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

M5. JOHNSON:  Thank you. | appreciate that.
| know that was a difficult one, and | appreciate you
hearing ne out on that.

As far as the filing requirenents when we get
to our paragraph 9, | will state that the way the rule
has been revised to read still states an original and
one copy, which very strongly inplies that that is a
hard copy. But if we can find sone conprom se | anguage
that would -- if we can find sonme way to say that, you
know, we -- I'mtrying to think of howto state this.

If it didn't say an original and one copy, if it just
said sonething like shall file a copy or sonething |ike
that, | think it would be easier to infer that

el ectronic filing was also allowed. So we just want to
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make sure that when we do our big cases that we aren't
needing to bring down 14 copies. | would hate to bring
down 14 copies of a MEEIA filing or sonething and put on
soneone's desk given that they're |ike a thousand pages
long. | also don't want to file EFIS and just assune
we're not violating a rule. | think even taking out the
original and one copy and putting sone other |anguage in
there, shall file with or shall file one copy with or
sonething like that, that would take out sone of that
i nference that a hard copy is invol ved.

JUDGE CLARK: | think that's actually what
Staff proposed today. Am| correct in that?

M5. MYERS. Yes, that was our intent.

M5. JOHNSON: Ckay. That woul d be great so
t hank you. Let's see. Wen we get to paragraph 12, |
did want to clarify one thing. | know Staff referenced
that 13.010(4) probably addressed what our concern was.
|"'mnot sure if I'"'mreading that incorrectly. But when
| turn to the existing regulation, it seens to be
di scussing that the utility will adopt rul es governing
relationships wth custoners and applicants. So |'m not
entirely sure that does fully address what our concern
was. And we were -- W're fine if we go back to the
original language. | think the word residential in

t here kind of neans that a nonresidential custoner could
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never be an applicant. So we do wonder if that word
needs to conme out of the regulation.

M5. MYERS:. Judge, if you don't mnd if | just
tal k to our custoner experience departnent about Aneren
M ssouri's nost recent comment on that.

JUDGE CLARK: Go right ahead.

M5. MYERS: Thank you. Staff would be okay
with renoving the word residential.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you.

M5. JOHNSON: Thank you. | also wanted to
address a little bit nore of the and/or issue.
understand OPC s concern about changing that fromand to
or. | think that's kind of alone a further out
representation of the rule but | also think switching to
and, and | don't know if there's sone way we can find a
m ddl e ground on this | anguage because just referring to
and there could also be a very strict reading that well,
since say there are two roonmates, one roonmate never
put his name on the bill, then he could say well, |
never accepted responsibility for it and then we | ose
sone of the benefits of service rules that |let us go
t owards ot her coll ections.

| don't know if there's a mddle ground on
that, but | don't think changing it to and is the answer

because that just |essens our ability to try to find

TI GER COURT REPORTI NG LLC
WAV TI GERCR. COM  573. 999. 2662

37



© 00 N oo o0 A~ W DN PP

N NN N NN P B P P P P PP P
o M W N P O © 00 N O O » W N P O

AX-2018-0395 Vol . |

ot her ways to avoid incurring bad debt in the first
pl ace, because that just has to get socialized to all
custoners. So maybe there's a middle ground we can find
sonehow. Maybe who has previously received service or
t he benefit of service. | know that nmay not fully
address OPC s concern, but that has sone additional
connot ati ons beyond just receiving service w thout
getting into the and accepted. So that is our concern.
We think and accepted goes too far and we understand OPC
t hi nks or accepted doesn't go far enough. [|'mnot sure
how to find a m ddle ground there.

JUDCGE CLARK: | understand both concerns from
a strict reading of it each way.

MS. JOHNSON:  Yes.

M5. MYERS: Judge, if | may. | think as Staff
had noted, we were okay with just |eaving the existing
| anguage, and | think Areren M ssouri and OPC nmay have
made that comment as well. |If we're trying to find a
m ddl e ground, we did have anot her | anguage option
there. Instead of and accepted, we would suggest and is
responsi bl e for paynent of service mght also be other
| anguage if the Comm ssion would choose to do sonet hi ng
different than the existing |anguage.

M5. JOHNSON: And | believe we would find that

acceptable and is responsible for.
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COW SSI ONER HALL: I'mgetting confused. |If
we take the existing |anguage and renove residential,
who i s opposed? Staff is fine wwth that. That was your
request, right, M. Johnson?

M5. JOHNSON: That's correct, yes.

COWM SSI ONER HALL: So Anmeren woul d be fine
wth that. OPC, are you fine with that as well?

M. Hall?

MR HALL: We see no -- Public Counsel sees no
reason to object at this tine.

COW SSI ONER HALL: Ckay. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: That's just shortening the
entire thing to applied to receive service. Ckay.

Thank you. Go on.

M5. JOHANSON:  And | apol ogi ze if |
i nadvertently caused sone confusion there. As far as
t hat addressed (1)(A) and as far as (1)(GQ, if we went
back to the original |anguage we would be good with it
there also. Oherwise, we also |ike the suggestion that
Ms. Myers just nade regarding is responsible for
service. | think either of those would work for us.

Movi ng on to paragraph 13. | think we woul d
advocate to maintaining the tie. This rule specifically
references an alternative that can be done during the

nont hs of Novenber, Decenber, and January. It seens
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pretty explicitly tied to the Cold Weather rule. So we
woul d prefer to see that tie -- that strong tie to the
Cold Weather rule remain rather than opening it up to
this chapter. For one thing, we're in -- | haven't had
a chance to go through the entire chapter to see if
there's sonething that m ght underm ne the entirety of
that rule in the first place. So | think [imting it to
the Cold Weather rule gets to the intent of what was
there without potentially opening it up so broadly that
this particular provision has no neaning.

Again, |'msaying that w thout having a chance
to go back and go all the way through Chapter 13, but I
think by its language it's fairly clearly tied to the

Cold Weather rule and we'd li ke to see it continue to be

tied to the Cold Weather rule. | believe that concl udes
my comments and | thank you for the opportunity. |If
there are any other questions, |'mabsolutely happy to

answer them

JUDGE CLARK: Any questions fromthe
Commi ssi on?

COW SSI ONER HALL: 1'd like Staff and OPC to
respond to that |ast statenent by Ms. Johnson. | think
that is a legitimate concern that opening it up to the
entire chapter as opposed to the specific provision.

M5. MYERS:. Yeah, that is a valid point. So
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as a conpromise | think limting it to 13.055 instead of
narrowing it down to (8), because 13.055 is the Cold
Weather rule. | think the concern we were trying to
address by saying this chapter, and | do think probably
only the Cold Weather rule is applicable but | do see
how t hat coul d open that up to interpretations that we
aren't intending. So |l think limting it to 13.055 and
just elimnating that section (8) specific cite would
satisfy Staff.

M5. JOHNSON: We'd be anenable to that. Thank
you.

MR HALL: | will also plead ignorance as to
t he knowl edge of any other provisions within Chapter 13
that may conflict with this particular rule. [|f another
section does exist, though, we believe that there would
still be a conflict regardless of this unless prohibited
| anguage, whet her the unl ess prohibited | anguage applies
to just one section. If we nake it clear that it
applies to this chapter, we believe that that should --
we believe that's actually better for the conpany. |If
however we think that the end result of what all parties
are wanting to get to is also acconplished by just
citing to the Cold Weather rule and with what Staff just
suggested renovi ng subdivision (8) fromthe particul ar

-- with regard to the particular citation of Section 55
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in Chapter 13 is al so reasonabl e.

COW SSI ONER HALL: | have no further
guesti ons.

JUDGE CLARK: Thank you. Anything further
from Ameren?

M5. JOHNSON: Nothing further. Thank you.

JUDGE CLARK: KCP&L, GMO?

MR. FI SCHER:  Judge, Conm ssioner, KCP&L, GVO
didn't file separate witten comments. | think they
generally concur with the comments that were filed by
Ameren however. The only issue that was specifically
brought to nmy attention was the one related to the
revision that Ameren tal ks about on (1) (G of the
Definitions section, and | understand fromthe coments
in the roomthat Staff and Public Counsel and Aneren are
okay with leaving the rule as it exists today, and ny
client would agree wth that too.

JUDGE CLARK: Point me to that again, please.

MR. FISCHER: It begins at the bottom of
(1)(G -- excuse ne, bottom of page 6 where they're
tal king about (1)(G and it carries over to the top
third of the next page and that's tal ki ng about the
benefit of service issue that's been discussed. KCP&L
and GMO woul d like to retain the existing | anguage |

t hi nk rather than changing that to possibly inplicating
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how t he exi sting custoner service practices are.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. HALL: For clarity, Jim you're referring
to Section 15, Chapter 13, correct, when you say (1)(Q?

MR. FISCHER  Yes, yes. It's discussed in
Aneren's comments at paragraph 12 at the bottom of that
page.

MR. HALL: Thank you

MR. FISCHER® Wth that, that's all | have.

JUDGE CLARK: Ckay. Have | m ssed anybody?
Are there any other comments? Hearing none, appears
we're done with the cormments and responses. Are there
any other issues or natters that need to be addressed by
the Comm ssion at this tinme? Staff?

M5. MYERS: No, Judge.

JUDGE CLARK: OPC?

MR. HALL: None, Your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: Ameren M ssouri?

M5. JOHNSON:  None, Your Honor.

JUDGE CLARK: KCP&L and GMO?

MR. FISCHER: No, sir.

JUDGE CLARK: Hearing none, this hearing is
adj ourned and we'l|l go off the record. Thank you al
for your tine today. | appreciate it.

(Of the record.)
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